APPENDIX IV
ANNUAL REPOR'T
(Promuigated with the Circular No 96/2020/1T-BTC on 2020-11-16 of the Minister of Finance)

SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETINAM
DONG NAL PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No.: 01/2025/BCTN-SDN Dong Nai, March 17, 2025

ANNUAL REPOR'TY 2024

To: - Hanoi Stock Exchange
- Company Sharcholders

I- GENERAL INFORMATION:

1/- General information:
- Trading name: DONG NAI PAINT CORPORATION

— Business Registration Certificate No: 3600451024, amended for the 11th time on
23/10/2023, issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai
Province.

- Charter capital: VND 30,364,360,000

—  Address: Road 7, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien IHoa City, Dong

Nai Province.
— Telephone: 02513.921.355
— TFax: 02513.836.091
—  Website: www.dongnaipaint.com.vn
— Stock code: SDN

— Manutacturing plant in cooperation with PPG Vietnam Co., Lid. at AMATA
Industrial Park: Road No. 5, AMATA Industrial Park, Long Binh Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province.

— Logo:

- Slogan: Enhancing Value
- Establishment and development process:
+ Establishment: Dong Nai Paint Corporation, formerly Dong Mai Paint Factory,

was established in 1987, previously a state-owned enterprise under the Dong Nai
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Department of Industry (now the Department of Industry and Trade). The enterprise was
converted into a Joint Stock Company under Decision No. 4636/QD-UBT dated March
1, 2000, issued by the People’s Committee of Dong Nai Province.

+ Process of Share Listing: The Company was granted a license by the State
Securitics Commission under License No. 106/UBCK-GPNY dated December 8, 2000,
with the following details:

Securities Name: Shares of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.
Stock code: SDN
Par value: 10,000 VND/share.

Total listed securities volume: 1,140,000 shares (One million one hundred forty
thousand shares).

Total listed sccurities valuc: VND 11,400,000,000 (Eleven billion four hundred
million Vietnamese dong)

Effective listing date: December 8, 2006
Official trading date: December 25, 2006

+ On September 16, 2008, the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (IHOSE) issued
a decision approving the Company’s additional listing of newly issued shares with the
following details:

Stock name: Shares of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.
Stock code: SDN
Par value: VND 10,000

Additional listed securities volume: 209,641 shares (Two hundred nine thousand
six hundred forty-one shares).

Additional listed value: VND 2,096,410,000 (Two billion ninety-six million four
hundred ten thousand Vietnamese dong).

Total listed securities volume: 1,349,641 shares (One million three hundred forty-
nine thousand six hundred forty-one shares).

Total listed securities value: VND 13,496,410,000 (Thirteen billion four hundred
ninety-six million four hundred ten thousand Vietnamese dong).

+ On September 14, 2010, the Company was approved for an additional listing of
newly issued shares with the following details:

Stock name: Shares of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.
Stock code: SDN
Par value: 10,000 VND



Additional listed securities volume: 168,577 shares (One hundred sixty-eight
thousand five hundred seventy-seven shares).

Additional listing value: VND 1,685,770,000 (One billion six hundred eighty-five

million seven hundred seventy thousand Vietnamese dong).

Total listed securities volume: 1,518,218 shares (One million five hundred eighteen
thousand two hundred eighteen shares).

Total listed securities value: VND 15,182,180,000 (Fifteen billion one hundred
eighty-two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese dong).

On October 16, 2023, the Hanoi Stock Exchange (IHNX) issued a decision
approving the Company's additional listing of shares with the following details:

Stock name: Shares of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

Stock code: SDN

Par value: 10,000 VND.

Additional listed securities volume: 1,518,218 shares (One million five hundred
cighteen thousand two hundred eighteen shares).

Additional listed value: VND 15,182,180,000 (Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-
two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese dong).

Total listed securities volume: 3,036,436 shares (Three million thirty-six thousand
four hundred thirty-six shares).

Total listed securities value: VND 30,364,360,000 (Thirty billion three hundred
sixty-four million three hundred sixty thousand Vietnamese dong).

- Other events:

On March 1, 2000, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued
the first Business Registration Certilicate. Charter capital: VND 7,200,000,000. (Seven
billion two hundred million Vietnamese dong).

On September 18, 2002, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment
issued the Ist amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
7,200,000,000. (Seven billion two hundred million Vietnamese dong).

On May 19, 2005, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued
the 2nd amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND 11,400,000,000.

On September 22, 2008, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment
issued the 3rd amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
13,496,410,000. (Thirteen billion four hundred ninety-six million four hundred ten
thousand Vietnamese dong).



On September 14, 2010, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment
issued the 4th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
15,182,180,000. (Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty
thousand Vietnamese dong.)

On December 28, 2012, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment
issued the 5th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
15,182,180,000. (Fifteen billion one hundred ecighty-two million one hundred eighty
thousand Vietnamese dong)

On April 5, 2013, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued the
6th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND 15,182,180,000.
(Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese
dong).

On May 16, 2014, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued
the 7th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND 15,182,180,000.
(Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese
dong).

On August 30, 2016, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued
the 8th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND15,182,180,000.
(Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese
dong).

On April 17, 2020, the Dong Nai Department of Planning and Investment issued
the 9th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND 15,182,180,000.
(Fifteen billion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty thousand Vietnamese
dong).

On April 11, 2023, the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai
province issued the 10th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
15,182,180,000 (Fifteen biilion one hundred eighty-two million one hundred eighty
thousand dong)

On October 23, 2023, the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai
province issued the 11th amended Business Registration Certificate. Charter capital: VND
30,364,360,000 (Thirty billion three hundred sixty-four million three hundred sixty
thousand dong)

2/- Business lines and locations of the business:

- Main business lines:

Manufacture of paints, varnishes and similar coatings, printing ink and mastics:
Paint production; Putty (wall filler) production

Wholesale of other construction materials and equipment: Wholesale of paint.



Manufacture of other chemical products n.e.c.: Glue production

Other specialized wholesale not elsewhere classified: Wholesale of adhesives,
import and export of raw materials and products related to paints and adhesives.
Wholesale of putty (wall filler).

- Location of business:
Southeast Region (Ho Chi Minh City, Dong Nei, Vung Tau, Binh Duong, Tay Ninh...)

Central Highlands and South Central Region (Dak Lak, Lam Dong, Ninh Thuan, Binh
Thuan...)

Mekong Delta Region (Tien Giang, Can Tho, Long An, Soc Trang...)

The company is currently manufacturing paint products for partners who are
leading paint production groups in the world: AKZONOBEL (NETHERLANDS), PPG
(USA). The paint is used for constructions and equipment with high technical and quality
requirements such as oil rigs, ships, mobile phones, motorbikes. ..



ISSUED CERTIFICATES

ISO 9001:2015 Quality Certificate of Conformity Certificate of Standard
Management System Certificate No. 32-13 Compliance
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IMAGES OF SOME TYPICAL PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY
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-3/- Information on management model, business organization and management

apparatus:
- Management model: According to the provisions of Point a, Clause 1, Article 137

of the Law on Enterprises.
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4/- Development orientation:
- The main objectives of the Company in 2025.

No. Indicator Unit (VND) Plan

01 | Total Production Value Million 315,896
02 | Revenue Million 114,000
03 | Profit after tax Million 7,600
04 | Budget contribution Million 7,700
05 | Average Salary per Person per Month Million 11,296
06 | Total output o Ton 12,030
07 Explected Dividend Distribution . % 15

- Development strategies in medium and long term.

+ Product development strategy orientation: Continue to develop and improve the
production capacity of products in the domestic region. Besides developing the main and
spearhead product lines, focus on developing a variety of strong product lines to meet all
customer segments.

+ Quality strategy orientation: DONASA brand Dong Nai Paint products are
manufactured in accordance with the National Standards of the Ministry of Construction;
JIS K 5663:2003 Standard Certificate of Japan; products are quality managed according
to ISO 9001:2015 international standard. Products are announced to be compliant with
regulations at the Department of Construction of Dong Nai and the Department of
Industry and Trade.

+ Business strategy orientation: Maintain a stable distribution system as a
foundation and develop the project and construction customer segment through
distributors who are construction and mechanical companies. Actively cooperate with
manufacturers of construction materials in the Sonadezi Corporation, consulting units,
designers, and contractors to create a sustainable and long-term cooperation chain.

+ Brand development strategy orientation: Promote product brands through media,
unify and diversify marketing communication activities, focusing on the role of network
communication, community social activities, press...to enhance prestige and
competitiveness in the market.

+ Organizational Orientation: The management model is adjusted to suit the

development scale of each stage, based on which to proactively plan and train high-quality
human resources, meeting the needs of quantity and quality for future development goals.




+ Financial Management Strategy Orientation: Standardize business production
processes to ensure short-term financial efficiency, while aiming for the long-term
sustainable development of the Company. Balance and harmonize the interests of all
parties with high consensus among sharcholders, employees, and the community.

+ Sustainable Development Goal Orientation: All business production activities of
the Company must comply with the law, contribute to a healthy business environment,
create abundant jobs, and participate in the global supply chain. Fulfill tax obligations to
the state, protect the environment, and actively participale in social activities for the
community.

5/- Risks:
- Business environment risks: The war between Russia and Ukraine continues,
regional conflicts persist, and the real estate market has not yel recovered.

Management measures: Closely monitor the domestic and international political
and cconomic situation at each point in time, combined with sharp intuition to make
appropriate decisions. On that basis, take advantage of opportunitics and find advantages
even in difficulties.

- Risks from fluctuations in raw material prices: Increased costs due to high raw
material prices.
Management measures: Always maintain a minimum of three suppliers to limit

monopolics. Forecast the falling point of raw material prices to have the best storage plan.

- Fire risks. Fires and explosions occur during the production and storage of raw
materials and production supplies.

Management measures: Arrange decentralized warehouses. Purchase fire and
explosion insurance. Do a good job of fire prevention and fighting and periodically train
in the use of fire fighting equipment. Every year, there is a training, coaching, and on-site
fire-fighting drill program.

II- OPERATIONS IN 2024:
1/- Situation of production and business operations
1.1/- Results of business operations in 2024:

1.1.1/- Implemented ecconomic indicators:

PLAN | RESULT | RESULT | ACTUAL/ | AC/PY
No. INDICATOR Init
¢ CATO Uni 2024 2024 2023 | PLAN (%) | (%)
T —
() TR Million VND | 325.181 | 333420 | 312.017 103 107
Value
2 | Total revenue " [14.000 | 123.706 | 125.095 108 99
3 | Sumtal Verions Ton 12400 | 12,106 | 11.553 98 105
Products
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l 4 | Profit alter tax Million VIND 7.748 8.850 16.469 114 54
s | DudgstConfrbuon . | s v 8.000 5480 | 6361 106 133
(Payable)
0 Average salary income " 10,571 12,215 10,077 | 114 114
2/- Organization and Human resource:
2.1/- List of the Beard of Management (no change in period).
| | - | o D f
- | - ate o
! No. | Full Name ' Pasition . Note
i appomitment
| ' Nguven Duc Nhien Gieneral Director 10/04/2020
! am Thuyen depuly General Director .
2 | Nguyen Pham Thuyen Deputy General Directon 10/04/2020 |

3 | Huynh Nguyen Thanh Uyen | Deputy Generai Director 25/03/2020 |

4 | Iuynh Thi Thanh Huong Chief Accountant 03/02/2020

2.1.1/- Summary of personal profiles of members of the Board of Management
- Summary of Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien personal profile
Full name: Nguyen Duc Nhien
Gender: Male
Date of birth: 5/1/1972
Nationality: Vietnamese
Ethnicity: Kinh
Qualification: Master of Business Administration
Work experience:
- From March 1998 te June 2002: Employee of Economic Planning Department,
Head of Hieu Liem Agricultural Station, Tri An Sugarcane Company, Vinh Cuu, Dong
Nai
- From June 2002 - November 2009: Stafl, Team Leader of the Marketing Team,
business Department, Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

- From November 2009 - February 2012: Deputy Head of the business Department,
Dong Nai Paint Corporation.
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- From February 2012 - October 2019: Head of the business Department, Dong
Nai Paint Corporation.

- From November 2019 - March 2020: Deputy General Director of Dong Nai Paint
Corporation.

- From April 2020 — Present: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors - General
Director of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

- Other positions in other organizations: Member of the Members' Council of Thien
Nhat Thien Company Limited.

Number of shares held at Dong Nai Paint Corporation (as of 04/03/2025): 13,200 shares,
accounting for 0.43% of charter capital.

+ Representative of the owner: 607,392 (as of 04/03/2025) shares, accounting for 20% of
charter capital:

Holding commitments (il any): None
Related persons holding shares of the listed organization:
Debts to the Company: None
Related interests to the Company: None
Conflicting interests with the Company: None
- Summary of Nguyen Pham Thuyen personal profile
Full name: Nguyen Pham Thuyen
Gender: Male
Date of birth: 30/9/1973
Nationality: Vietnamese
Ethnicity: Kinh
Qualification: - Chemical Engineer
- Bachelor of International Economic Relations

Work experience:

- From May 1996 - June 2000: Technical staff of Dong Nai Paint Factory

- From July 2000 - October 2019: Head of Technical Department of Dong Nai

Paint Corporation

- From November 2019 - March 2020: Deputy General Director of Dong Nai Paint
Corporation

- From April 2020 - Present: Chairman of the Board of Directors, Deputy General

Director of Dong Nai Paint Corporation

12



- Other positions in other organizations: Member of the Members' Council of Thien
Nhat Thien Company Limited.

Number of shares held at Dong Nai Paint Corporation (as of 04/03/2025): 8,000 shares,
accounting for 0.26% of charter capital.

Holding commitments (if any) : None
Related persons holding shares of the listed organization: None
Debts to the Company: None
Related interests to the Company: None
Conflicting interests with the Company: None
- Summary of Ms. Huynh Nguyen Thanh Uyen personal profile
[Full name: Huynh Nguyen Thanh Uyen
Gender: Female
Date of birth: 29/3/1969
Nationality: Vietnamese
Ethnicity: Kinh
Qualification: - Chemical Engineer
Work experience:
- From May 1993 - June 2004: Technical staff of Dong Nai Paint Factory
- From July 2004 - July 2005: Deputy Manager of Dong Nai Paint Corporation
- From August 2005 - February 2020: Manager of Dong Nai Paint Corporation

- From March 2020 - Present: Deputy General Director of Dong Nai Paint
Corporation

- Other positions in other organizations: None

Number of shares held at Dong Nai Paint Corporation (as of 04/03/2025): 0 shares,
accounting for 0% of charter capital.

Commitments held (if any): None

Related parties holding shares of the reporting organization: None
Debts to the Company: None

Related Party Transactions with the Company: None

Contflicting interests with the Company: None
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- Summary of Ms. Huynh Thi Thanh Huong personal profile

I‘ull name: Huynh Thi Thanh Huong
Gender: Female
Date of birth: 16/09/1979
Nationality: Vietnamese
Ethnicity: Kinh
Qualification: Bachelor of Finance and Accounting
Work experience:

- From year 2003-year 201 1: Accountant staff of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

- From year 2012-year 2018: Accountant staff, Member of Board of Supervisor of
Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

- From year 2019 — Present : Chief Accountant Dong Nai Paint Corporation.
- Other positions in other organizations: None

Number of shares held at Dong Nai Paint Corporation (as of 04/03/2025): 0 shares,
accounting for 0% of charter capital. :

+ Representative of the owner: 0 (as of 04/03/2025) shares, accounting for 0% of charter
capital:

Holding commitments (if any): None

Related persons holding shares of the listed organization: None
Debts to the Company: None

Related interests to the Company: None

Conflicting interests with the Company: None

2.1.2/- Chiel Accountant, information disclosure officer

No. Name Position Da.te of
appointment
I | Huynh Thi Thanh Huong Chief Accountant 03/02/2020

. Authorized Person for
2 | Nguyen Van Linh ! ]O“é.e (?:]SOII o 01/09/2012
Information Disclosure
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2.1.3/- Number of stafTs.

As of 31/12/2024
No. Indicator Quantity Percentage
(People) (%)
1 | Labor trained at University and above 41 27
) Intermediate, College, Vocational, Technical 25 17
Worker

3 | Unskilled Labor 83 66
Total 149 100

3/- Minvestment activities, project implementation:

3.1 Financial investment: 819 million VND.

- Shares in Nhon Trach Investment Joint Stock Company: 819 million VND,
equivalent to 81,900 shares, in 2024 Nhon Trach Investment Joint Stock Company will

not pay dividends.

3.2. Land rental payment status at [1o Nai Industrial Park as of Date 2024-12-31.

- Land rental cost at Ho Nai Industrial Park: VND 71,180,039,027 (Including 10%

VAT and at the exchange rate on Date 31/12/2022).
- The Company has made the payment: VND 63,900,632,804

- Remaining amount to be paid: 8,431,830,000 VND (equivalent to 330,000 USD
at the exchange rate on Date 31/12/2024).

4/- Financial situation:

Financial situation

Indicator

Year 2024

Year 2023

Increase/
decrease (%)

Total asset value

Net revenue

Profit [rom Business Activities
Other profit

Profit from Business Activities
Profit afler tax

Profit ratio o pay dividends

109.332.757.705
119.647.971.540
7.714.791.871
3.441.648.542
11.156.440.413
8.849.948.307
61,75

105.158.227.175
110.535.437.606
17.353.306.996
3.396.479.537
20.749.786.533
16.468.647.332
27,65

Tang:
Tang:
Giam
Tang:
Giam
Giam

Tang: 223%

44%

3%
8%

1%
53%
53%
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b)  Major financial indicators

Indicators Year 2024 Year 2023 Note
1. Liquidity Ratios
+ Current Ratio: 13
Current Assets/Short-term Liabilities. ’ 1.2
+ Quick Ratio:
Short term Asset - Inventories 0,7
Short term Debt 0,6
2. Capital structure Ratio
+ Debt/Total assets ratio. 058 0,39
+ Debt/Owner’s Equity ratio. b5 0,63
3. Operation capability Ratio
+ Inventory turnover: 411 W
Cost of goods sold/Average inventory.
+ Total asset turnover: 1,0 1,0
Net revenue/Average Total Assets.
4. Profitability
+ profit after tax/Net revenue Ratio. Gt 0,14
+ profit after tax/total capital Ratio 0,13 0,25
+ profit after tax/Total assets Ratio. 0.08 0,15
+ Profit ~from business activities/Net , 0,15
revenue Ratio. 0,06
5/- Shareholders structure, change in the owner’s equity:
a) Shares
- Total number of shares and type of shares outstanding: 3,036,436 shares
- Number of freely transferable shares: 3,036,436 shares
- Number of restricted shares: 0 shares
b) Sharcholder structure (as of 4/03/2025)
Number of Number of shares Percentage

Index
M shareholders

owned

(%)
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] 3 4
1. Major sharcholders 04 1.575.996 - 51
2 Minorty 301 1.460.440 49
shareholders
- _ __.__l__
3. Domestic 279 2.353.8006 71,5
a. individual 274 L112.196 36,6
shareholders
b. institutional 5 1.241.610 40,8
| 3. Forcign 26 682,630 22,5
a. individual )
20 567.706 18,6
sharcholders
b. institutional 6 114.924 3,7
4, State shareholders 01 911.088 30
5. Other sharcholders 304 2.125.348 70

c) Changes in owner's investment capital:

On October 23, 2023, Dong Nai Departinent of Planning and Investiment issued ihe 11th
amended Business Registration Cerlificate. Charter capital: VND 30,364.,360,000
(Thirty billion three hundred sixty-four million three hundred sixty thousand dong)

d) Treasury stock transactions: None

e) Other securities: None

6. Environment-Social-Governance (ESG) Report of the Company.

6.1 Environmental impact.

- Total direct and indirect GHG emission: 638 CO2¢

- Measures and initiatives to reduce GHG emission: None.,

6.2 Management of raw materials.

a. Total amount of raw materials for product manutacturing and packaging in the
year: 824.136 kg (including packaged products and 2% raw material loss rate in

production).
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b. The percentage of materials recycled to produce products and services of the
organization: None.

6.3 Energy consumption:

a. Energy consumption - directly and indirectly (Electricity): Average consumption
56.000 KW/month.

b. Energy savings through initiatives of efficiently using energy: None.

c. The report on energy saving initiatives (providing products and services to save
energy or use renewable energy); report on the results of these initiatives: None.

6.4. Water consumption:

a. Water supply and usage: Supplied by Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company:
Average consumption 445m*/month.

b. Percentage and total amount of recycled and reused water: None.

6.5. Compliance with the law on environmental protection:

a. Number of times penalized for violating environmental laws and regulations: None.
b. Total amount of fines for violating environmental laws and regulations: None.
0.6. Policies related to employees:

a. Number of employees, average salary for employecs: 149people, income level:.
12.200.000 VND/person/month.

b. Labor policies to ensure health, safety and welfare of workers: Implemented
according to the regulations of the State and local authorities.

c. Employee training.

- The average number of training hours per year, according to the staff and classified
staff: 16 hours/year. Training on regulations on Occupational Safety and Health - Fire
Prevention and Fighting, other professional skills.

- The skills development and continuous learning program to support workers
employment and career development: Internal and external training, based on the
functions and tasks of each Department, Workshop, and job position.

0.7. Report on responsibility for local community:

Community investment and other community development activities, including
financial support to serve the community: The company has participated in community-
oriented programs: Supporting the Gratitude Fund, Supporting the Agent Orange/dioxin
Victims Fund, Supporting poor families for Tet; Supporting the Blind Association of
districts in Dong Nai province.

6.8 Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of the SSC: None.
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I11/- REPORTS AND ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT:

1/- Assessment of operating results.
1.1. Production-Business-Sales Management.
I.1.1 Regarding production organization.

- In 2024, the workshops arranged labor reasonably, meeting the requirements for
overtime and shift work, thereby meeting the delivery schedule as required by Pariners
and Customers. Implemented 12,106 tons of various products, this is a great effort of the
staff at the production area, in which absolute requirements for occupational safety,
environment, and fire and explosion along with product quality are prioritized.

- The production workshops have taken many measures (o utilize the capacity of
machinery and equipment, worked diligently, actively worked overtime, and coordinated
well with the technical departments, which are also lactors contributing to the stability of
the company's production.

- The company has handed over to PPG Viet Nam Co., Ltd. the entire status of the
factory, machinery and equipment, personnel, and legal documents at Yen Phong-Bac
Ninh factory. The company officially terminated all production and business activities at
Bac Ninh Branch, from 1/8/2024.

- The company is signing a processing contract with 3 foreign partners: PPG Viet
Nam Co., Ltd., PPG Yung Chi Coatings Co., Ltd., and Akzo Nobel Viet Nam LTD. This
is an important premise for us to feel secure in organizing production in the coming years.

[.1.2. Regarding Business-Sales:

- Faced with increasingly difficult production and business circumstances due to
the impact of the real estate and construction materials market, leading to a decrease in
construction projects, the sales team actively expanded their search for new markets and
customers, regularly analyzing consumer trends to develop appropriate marketing and
sales plans.

- In 2024, due to the difficult economic situation, television advertising activitics
were reduced, but the Company still maintained advertising for DONASA Hitech Plus
water-based paint at the Bien Hoa I Industrial Park Water Tank and billboard advertising
at the gateway to Bien Hoa City (30/4 Park - Bien Hoa), and in 2024, the consumption
output of DONASA Hitech Plus water-based paint doubled compared to 2023.

- Dong Nai Paint products - DONASA brand are currently being consumed at 93
Dealer stores, 65 direct-consuming businesses, and more than 100 level 2 distribution
stores of the Distribution System. The Company continuously develops promotional
programs with various and diverse forms to increase sales and stimulate consumption to
achieve the set economic targets.

- To increase sales for 2024 and also as a customer appreciation and engagement
activity, in the last 5 months of the year, the Company launched a customer conference
tourism promotion program in South Korea held in March 2025 with 69 participants.

- In sales and collection activities: The Accounting and Business Department strengthened
urging customers to pay debts and strictly controlled old and newly arising debts. The
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ratio of receivables to revenue at the end of the year decreased compared to the same
period.

1.2. Tasks ensuring Production and Business.
1.2.1. Regarding Technical-Production Supervision work.

- The Company's products during production and consumption are managed by the
ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System. Product quality complies with QCVN
16:2019/BXD; QCVN 08/BCT and Japanese standard JIS K 5663:2003.

- The Company always focuses on improving quality and product packaging to
meet customer needs and increasc competitiveness in the decorative paint market. At the
same time, diversify different products to increase market share; during the year, the
hotmeil product line - traffic line marking paint - was launched into the market.

- To increase competitive advantage, the Company is also developing a set of
DONASA medium-high-grade water-based paints (including primer, interior and exterior
paints) which are being tested in the Bien Hoa and Kien Giang markets, and when reliable
quality resulls are available, they are expected to be commercialized in 2025.

- The R&D technical team has rescarched and crealed many water-based and
solvent-based products to diversify products and increase competitiveness in the market.
These products are being evaluated for quality and suitability for climatic conditions when
put into practical use.

1.2.2. Regarding Accounting-Statistics work.

- Ensuring financial resources in internal payments as well as in (ransactions with
foreign partners. Debts incurred during business operations have been strictly controlled.

- In processing and analyzing data within the month and quarter, it is reflected
promptly from the 2nd to the 12th of each month, thereby helping the Board of
Management make timely and cffective business decisions.

- From the results of the semi-annual and annual audits by RSM Vietnam Auditing
Company and the supervision activitics of the Board of Supervisors, the accounting work
has been carried out in accordance with the law and the Company's financial regulations.

1.2.3. Regarding Electromechanical-Construction Works.

- Maintenance and equipment upkeep activitics have been effective, limiting
breakdowns and strictly controlling electrical safety requirements.

- All incidents related to the electrical system, machinery, and equipment operation
have been addressed with corrective and preventive actions. In 2024, no major machinery
damage leading to production downtime will be allowed.

- The Mechanical - Construction Department has consistently taken the initiative
in improving and manufacturing machinery and equipment for the workshop to meet
production demands and reduce costs for the Company.
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1.2.4. Regarding Organization-Administration-Human Resources.

- Human resource development and training are always prioritized, with on-site
training activitics maintained. Labor allocation is rational, meeting the production and
protessional work requirements of the entire company.

- Advised and assisted the Board of Directors and Board of Management in
complying with legal regulations, emulation and commendation, Party-Union activities,
stock market matters, etc.

- Implemented employee policies regarding salaries, income, working hours, rest
time, labor insurance, etc., in accordance with labor law regulations.

- Political Security and Order inside and outside the company are prioritized;
Complaints and questions about salary regimes and labor policies did not occur - The
company maintains a cooperative and harmonious werking environment.

- Occupational safety and health requirements, fire prevention and fighting,
environmental protection, and health protection are maintained and implemented
effectively. Contributing to ensuring safe and efficient business operations.

1.3. Caring for working conditions and employee life.

- Labor relations at the company are harmonious, democratic, transparent, and
ensure fairness between contribution and benefits. The working environment at the
company is constantly being improved to ensure employee health.

- In 2024, the economic situation was difficult, while many companies and
enterprises in the construction and building materials industry had to close, go bankrupt,
or operate at a reduced capacity, with employees taking turns off work, but Dong Nai
Paint Corporation employees still have stable jobs and guaranteed income, higher than in
2023. Cultural and sports activities, gilts for employees' children on the Mid-Autumn
Festival, school opening, and school closing are still maintained.

- In 2024, the Executive Board organized a vacation for all employees in the
company to Da Nang City, which was also the first long trip for all employees in many
years. This long vacation helped employees increase solidarity and attachment to the
company.

- All policies for employees regarding: Working environment, rest, personal
protective equipment, insurance regimes, hazardous work, periodic health check-ups,
occupational health examinations... are implemented in accordance with legal regulations.

1.4. Activities of part-time representative bodies.

- The company has a Labor Protection Council, Salary Council, Emulation and
Discipline Council, Initiative Council, ISO Committee, Environmental Protection
Committee, Digital Transformation Committee, 5SS Assessment Cluster, Fire Prevention
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and Fighting Cluster, and Occupational Safety and Iealth Network Cluster. These
organizations and clusters always strive to fulfill their assigned roles and responsibilities.

- The company has also facilitated socio-political organizations: Party Cell, Trade
Union, Youth Union, and Veterans Association to properly promote their functions,
dutics, as well as their leadership and guidance roles.

1.5. Occupational Safety - Labor Hygiene, Fire Prevention and Fighting,
Healtheare, and Environmental Protection.

- Coordinated with relevant authorities to organize (raining programs on
Occupational Safety - Labor Hygiene, Industrial Hygiene, IFire Prevention and Fighting,
Healthcare, and Environmental Protection. Throughout the year, fire drills and
competitions were organized and participated in at Son Ddng Nai and AMATA, achieving
high results.

- The company has proactively developed measures to prevent and control
workplace hazards and risks. No occupational accidents or occupational diseases occurred
during the year.

- Organized periodic health check-ups and occupational health examinations for
all employees. The results of these examinations ensured production and work.

- In 2024, the company conducted environmental monitoring and periodic
occupational environment monitoring in two arcas, Dong Nai Paint Corporation and
Amata, to improve working conditions in accordance with state regulations.

1.6. Emulation and Commendation, Community Activities:
1.6.1. Regarding Emulation and Commendation:

- During the year, a short-term emulation campaign was launched to celebrate the
company's founding anniversary, the 30/4 and 01/5 holidays, and the 79th anniversary of
FFactory. This created an enthusiastic emulation atmosphere, contributing to increased
production output and product quality, and employees adhered well to company
regulations and safety in production and business.

- Emulation activities among employees were not perfunctory, and timely
encouragement was given to ecmployees. The annual organization of emulation months
not only brings economic and material significance but also raises awareness and
enlightenment for workers and has become a Dong Nai Paint Culture.

1.6.2. Regarding Gratitude and Community-Oriented Activities: The company
participated in community-oriented programs: Supporting the Fund for Gratitude,
Supporting the poor during Tet, and Supporting the Blind Association in Pdng Nai
province.
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2/- Financial Situation:

a) Asset
- Total Capital Sources: 109.332.757.705 VND.

- The use of capital sources followed the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders, under the direction and supervision of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board, so capital sources were used rationally and safely, without any risks.

- Regarding bad debt: Based on the 2024 audit report, the total bad debt is 2.270.219.432
VND. This debt has been provisioned for doubtful receivables, and the company is
actively working with customers to recover the debt.

b) Debt Payable
- Payable debt: 42.397.189.957 VND

- These debts are for: Investment in machinery and equipment; purchase of raw
materials {rom customers; loans from financial institutions, etc. The value of these debts
does not significantly affect the company's production and business situation.

3. Improvements in organizational structure, policies, and management: According
to the organizational needs and tasks of the company.

4. Future Development Plan: According to the company's general objectives.

5. Explanation of the Board of Directors regarding audit opinions (if any): None.

6. Assessment Report related to environmental and social responsibilities of the
Company: Well implemented.

a. Assessment concerning the environmental indicators (water consumption,
energy, emissions, etc.): Well implemented.

b. Assessment related to labor issues: Well implemented.

c. Assessment related to corporate responsibility to the local community: Well

implemented.
IV- BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ASSESSMENT OFF COMPANY ACTIVITIES:

1/- Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation,
including the assessment related to environmental and social responsibilities:

- The Board of Directors consists of 5 members, including 02 members directly
managing and operating the Company. Based on the Resolution of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Board of Directors maintains a work program through quarterly
meelings. Meeting content ensures compliance with legal regulations and the Company's
Charter, with the participation of members of the Supervisory Board.

- In 2024, the Board of Directors held 04 regular meetings and 6 times sent written
requests for opinions from Board members to direct, orient production and business
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objectives, and dccide on arising issues in the Company's management and
administration.

- As a chemical production enterprise (various paints and putties), generating waste
sources, the Company always has strict measures to manage waste sources, absolutely not
allowing any waste to be rcleased into the environment. The Company always strictly
complies with environmental protection regulations and reports periodically to
environmental protection agencies. In community social activities, the Company actively
participates in support.

2/- Assessment of Board of Directors on Board of Management’s
performance:

- In 2024, due to the influence of the economy, the Company's production and
business activitics faced many difficultics; however, the Company's Board of Directors
directed all aspects of production and business activities, completing the assigned tasks
according to the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders. Specifically, the
Board of Management’s directed the implementation of a series of tasks: From production
organization, sales, human resources - salarics, debt collection, audit organization,
organizing gratitude activities, consolidating organizations, and mass organizations to
operate effectively, elc.

3/- Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors.

- 2025 and the following years are assessed to be very difficult due to the influence
of the domestic and global economy and the Russia-Ukraine war. The Board of Directors
determines to develop and increase the proportion of domestic paint production, including
solvent-based and water-based paints, reducing dependence on two foreign partners, in
the context of a significant reduction in output from the two partners.

- Focus on mobilizing finance, ensuring capital sources for production and business
activitics, and ensuring the relocation progress according to Dong Nai province's policy.
Propose a plan to build a new factory in Ho Nai Industrial Park when Bien Hoa 1 Industrial
Park relocates.

- Continue to cooperate in production with PPG Group (USA) and Akzo Nobel
(Netherlands) according to the signed contracts.

V- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
1/- Board of Directors

a) Members and structure of the Board of Directors:

N Board of Number of shares
s on-
No. Name Position ) Directors’ | owned at the end of
executive .
members the period
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of other | Number L
companies of Ownership
shares percentage
1 | Nguyen Pham Thuyen Chairman 8,000 0.26
2 | Nguyen Duc Nhien Members 13,200 0.43
3 | Dao Dinh De Members X 155,768 5.13
4 | Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh Members X 3,400 0.11
5 | Tran Trung Kien Members X X 0 0
b) The committees of the Board of Directors: Internal Audit Committce
¢) Activities of the Board of Directors:
- Meetings of the Board of Directors:
Number of
No. | Board of Directors’ | meetings attended Meeting Reasons for
members by Board of attendance rate absence
Directors
1 | Nguyen Pham Thuyen 04 100
2 | Nguyen Duc Nhien 04 100
3 | Tran Trung Kien 01 25 On business
4 | Dao Dinh De 03 5 On business
5 | Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh 04 100
- Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors:
. Approval
No. Resolution Date Content rate
Number
(%)
- Approve the 2023 business results.
- Approve the 2024 business plan.
- Approve in principle the plan for the
2024 Annual General Meeting of
28/2024/NQ- Sharcholders
25/01/2024 ' 100
1 mpor

- Approve the first interim dividend
payment for 2023 at S5%/par value.
Implementation time in Quarter 1/2024.

- Approve the 2024 salary scale plan.
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No.

Resolution
Number

Date

Content

Approval
rate
(%)

30/2024/NQ-
HDQT

19/03/2024

- Approve the Quarter 1/2024 business
results (Estimated implementation).

- Approve the Quarter 2/2024 business
plan and assign the Executive Board to
implement it.

- Approve the 2023 dividend payment of
15%/par value.

- Increase the 2023 Investment and
development fund from 15% to 30% and
allocate an additional VND
10,000,000,000 from the remaining
profit of previous years to the 2023
Investment and development fund.

- Approve the content of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Approve the date of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Sharcholders on
April 10, 2024 (1/2 day).

31/2024/NQ-
HDQT

04/06/2024

- Approved the selection of RSM
Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Co.,
Ltd. as the auditor for the 2024 financial
statements. Assigned the Executive
Board (o sign the contract with the
auditing unit in accordance with the law.

100

34/2024/NQ-
HIDQT

16/08/2024

- Approved the Business Production
Results for the first 6 months of 2024.

- Approved the Business Production Plan
and other tasks for quarter 3 and the last
6 months of 2024.

- Approved the distribution of the
remaining 2023 dividends according to
the Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders at a rate
of  10%/par  value of  shares.
Implementation time in September 2024,

100
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Approval

No. Resolution Date Content rate
Number o

(%)
36/2024/NO- A!)provcd the termination of lthe B.ac

5 HPOT 30/08/2024 | Ninh  branch - Dong Nai Paint 100
Corporation, effective from 2024-09-01.
- Approved the Business Production

5 38/2024{NQ— 06/11/2024 Results for the ﬁrst‘9 months 0t'2'024. -
HDPbQT - Approved the Business Production Plan

and other tasks for quarter 4/2024.

d. Activities of the Board of Directors’ independent members: The company does
not yet have independent Board of Directors members.

e. List of Board of Directors members with corporate governance training
certificates: Currently attending training courses.

2/- Board of Supervisors and Internal Audit Committee.
a) Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors.

List of members of the Board of Supervisors:

Number of shares owned
at the end of the period

No. Name Position
Number Percentage

of shares (%)

_ Head of the Board
1 | Dang Le Bich Phuong Z:‘(S(L)]pc;\e!iq:l";l ¢ 0

Member of the

2 | Bui Thi Thuy Lien Board of 0 0
Supervisors
Member of the
3 | Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong Board of 0 0
Supervisors

b) Activities of the Board of Supervisors:

- Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

No. Time Content

- Reviewed the 2023 financial statements.

- Results of monitoring the Company's operations and financial
1 | 28/02/2024 | situation.

- Evaluation of the management of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management.
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- Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors.
- Evaluation of related party transactions.

- Recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Executive
Board on management and business administration at the
Company.

- Work plan of the Board of Supervisors for 2024.

29/04/2024

- Approved the Report of the Board of Supervisors on the
inspection and supervision of the business production activities for
the first 6 months of 2024 of Dong Nai Paint Corporation.

17/08/2024

- Reviewed the financial statements for the first 6 months of 2024,
- Results of monitoring the Company's operations and financial
situation.

- Evaluation of the management of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management.

- Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors.
- Evaluation of related party transactions.

- Recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Executive
Board on management and business administration at the

Company.

¢) Members and structure of the Internal Audit Board:

List of members of the Internal Audit Board:

No.

Name Position

Number of shares owned
at the end of the period

T

Number Percentage
of shares (%)

Kieu Thi Thanh Loan Internal Audit 0 0

Head of the

Committee

d) Activitics of the Internal Audit Board: The Internal Audit Board conducts
internal audits according to the plan approved by the Board of Directors.

3/- Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Dircctors, Board

of Management, Board of Supervisors, and Internal Audit Board.

a) Salary, bonus, remuncration, other benefits:
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_ Total
No. Name Position unit ) ot
income
Chairman / 590.245.000
1 | Nguyen Pham Thuyen Deputy General VND
Director
Vice Chairman 634.547.000
v 1 D
2 | Nguyen Duc Nhien /General Director VN
3 | Dao Dinh De Member VND 113.992.000
4 | Tran Trung Kien Member VND 113.992.000
5 | Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh Member VND 113.992.000
6 | Dang Le Bich Phuong Head of the BoS VND 113.992.000
7 | Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong Member of BoS VND 64.996.000
8 | Bui Thi Thuy Lien Member of BoS VND 192.999.000
; nal 258.970.
9 | Kieu Thi Thanh Loan Homd .0 Ehe Infel na VND 8.270:000
Audit Committee
2 > The i .389.
10 Huynh Nguyen Thanh Depul.y General VND 433.389.000
Uyen Director

b) Insider share transactions: Details in the Appendix 4 in Report
02/2025/BCQT-SDN dated 20/01/2025 on the corporate governance situation in 2024
(Attached appendix 4).

¢) Contracts or transactions with insiders:

Information on contracts or transactions signed or executed during the year with
the Company, subsidiaries, companies controlled by members of the Board of Directors,
members ol the Board of Supervisors/Audit Committee, Directors (General Director),
managers, and related persons: Details in the Appendix 2 in Report 02/2025/BCQT-SDN
dated 20/01/2025 on the corporate governance situation in 2024 (Attached appendix 2).

d) Evaluation of the implementation of regulations on corporate governance: The
Company has complied with the provisions of the law on corporate governance.

VI. Financial statements: Attached document,
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Phuy lye 2: Giao dich giita cong ty véi ngudi c6 lién quan ciia cong ty; hodic giira cong ty véi co dong lén,

ngudi ndi bd, nguoi ¢o lién quan cia ngudi ndi bd nam 2024 (Dinh kém Bdo cdo s6 02/2024/BCQT-SDN

ngay 20/01/2025 vé tinh hinh quan trj Céng ty nim 2024).

Appendix 2: Transactions between the company and related persons of the company; or between the

company and major shareholders, insiders, and related persons of insiders in 2024 (Attached is Report No.

02/2024/BCQT-SDN dated January 20, 2025).

STT| Téntd Mbi quan S Dia chi Thoi SH Nghi Noi dung, s6 |  Ghi
chire/ca h¢ lién Gidy try s diém | quyét/Quyét | lwong, téng | chi
nhén quan voi | NSH*, | chinl/ giao dinh ctia gia tri giao Note
Name of cong ty ngay Piachi | dichvéi | DPHDCDB/HD | dich/Content,
organization | Relationshi cip, lién hé/ | congty | QT... thong quantity,
/ individual p with the noi Address | Timeof | qua (néu ¢, | total value of
Company chp transacti | néu rd ngay transaction
NSH ons with ban
No.*, the hanh)/Resol
date of Compan | ution No. or
issue, y Decision No.
place approved by
of General
issue Meeting of
Shareholders
/ Board of
Directors (if
any,
specifying
date of
issue)
C6 dong 16m So 1, 42/HDT | 08/2022/NQ | -Noi  dung:
major Duong I, | p/BHI | -HPQT Thué dit tai
shareholders KCN ngay Ngay KCN  Bién
pecting ?ifiﬁ’)ﬂj\léﬂ 9/10/200 | 29/07/2022 | Hoa .

) sske AR ) 3 -Tong gid tri
ty CP Phat Binh, TP, - 94 _—
trién KCN Bién 492/?;[ 0822022/NQ | 2 6.‘2“6":'

: Hoa, T. , -HDQT N

1 Industrial 36003 Péng dated dated dong.

Park 35363 Nai 9/10/200 20/07/2022 Content:
Developmen o 3 - Land lease at
t Joint St(,)Ck No. 1, Bien Hoa 1
Eorporation Road 1, Industrial

Bien Hoa Park.
Industrial -Total
Park, An transaction
Binh value:

Ward,




Bien Hoa 240.466.263
City, VND
Dong
Nai
Province
Nguoi ¢6 Tang 8, | 151/202 | 08/2022/NQ | -Noi  dung;
lién quan Toanha | o/HDNT | -HPQT Thué dich vy
el Sgga(;i]ezn 'XITCT Ngay xfrﬂ ly nude
_ ) 5 Ngay 29/07/2022 thai.
pessan budng 1, | 1310720 Téng gid i
KCN 20 UE8EHR giao dich;
Bién Hoa -HBQT 29.147.479
LP AR o | dated dong
Binh, TP. 29/07/2022
Bién 0/HDNT
Cong ty CP o4, T. XLCT Content:
Dich Vu Dél\g dated Renting
Sonadezi Ko 13/07/20 waslewater
P 20 {reatinent
o 36008 | 8th ﬂom'., services.
Toi : 90938 | Sonadezi Total
Jaint Sto?k Building . i
Corporation ) transaction
No. 1, value
Road 1, 29.147.479
]I31cn Hoa VND
Industrial
Zone, An
Binh
Ward,
Bien Hoa
City,
Dong
Nai
Province.
Ngudi co S 12, 26/2022/ | 08/2022/NQ | -Noi  dung:
lién quan duong HD.RT | -HPQT Thué dich vy
Related HEI}"HI] Ngay Ngay xir. ly chit
, . Vin 31/12/20 | 29/07/2022 | thai
Cé:lg ty Co peGEa Nghé, 21 08/2022/NQ | -Téng gid tri
phéin Mo P.Biru | 962020/ | -HDQT giao  dich:
truong Long,
o ngB s HD.RT | yied ':16.000.000 d
36002 | e [ dated 1 90/07/2022 | OM8
Sonadezi 74914 x| 3112720 Content:
Evironment Do_ng 21 Waste
Joint Stock Nai trcatment
Corporation No. 12, service rental
Huynh -Total
Van transaction
Nghe value:
Street, 46.000.000
Buu VND




Long

Ward,
Bien Hoa
City,
Dong
Nai
Province
Ngudi cé S648, [ SOhop | 08/2022/NQ |-Ngi  dung:
lién quan dudng dong: -HDQT Mua nuée
Cach Ngay sinh  hoat
a Ngay ky: e
Related mang BYRY 1 201072022 | nuée ubng,
PRESED thing “Tong gia tri
Tém, P 6 g"l. l.
N giao  dich:
Quys 08/2022/NQ | 48 420.000
Thang, -HDQT ad
_ ong
TP. Bién dated P _
Cong 1y CF Hod, T. 29/07/2022 })?{‘l‘?'“- .
Cz}lerUc Pbng Nai mcms’e 0
Pong Nai domestic
. 36002 | No. 48, water,
D Na.' 50296 | Cach drinking
Water Joint M ‘
ang waler.
facls Thang
Corporation ang -Total
Tam transaction
Street, value:
Cuyat 108,420,000
Thang VN
Ward,
Bien Hoa
Cily,
Dong
Nai
Province
T6 chire ¢6 40A, TS | 01/2008/ | 10/2022/NQ | -Noi  dung:
lién quan 14,KP4. | SDN- | -HDQT Thué  nha
P. Tén "NT ; ey
Related Phong F[N‘[ llgjly ,f M:Oﬂg o
organizatio TP B.’A Ngay 25/10/2020 T.ong glﬂ' tri
ns Ngudi - PIC 97117201 giao  dijch:
Cong ty ok TiEn g""lN |8 10/2022/NQ | 904.473.290
INHR o quan e Nal 112008/ | -HDQT | déng
Th?‘f“ Nhat 40A, SDN- dated -Content:
it Related | 35033 | group 1 | TNT [ 25/10/2020 | Factory
Thien Nhat | P! 09918 | Quarter dated rental
Thien 14, 7/11/201 Total
Company 8 transaction
Limited Tan value:
Phiong 904,473,290
Ward, VND
Bien Hoa
City,
Dong

Nai




Province

Cong ty
TNHH
Phuong
bong

Phuong
Dong
Company
Limited

Ngudi co
lién quan

Related
person

37004
04099

Puong
DT 746,
KP. Binh
Khanh,
P.Khanh
Binh,
TX. Tan
Uyén, T.
Binh
Duong

DT 746
Street,
Quarter
Khanh
Binh,
Khanh
Binh
Ward,
Tan
Uyen
City,
Binh
Duong
Province

31/CT/S
DN-
2022

Ngay
03/01/20
22

31/CT/S
DN-
2022
dated
03/01/20
22

10/2022/NQ
-HBQT

ngay
25/10/2020

10/2022/NQ
-HbQT
dated
25/10/2020

-Noi - dung:
Ban vit liéu
xdy dyung
-Téng gia tri
giao dich:
12.121.850
dong
-Content;
Selling
construction
materials
-Total
transaction
value:
12,121,850
VND




Phu lye 4: Giao dich ctia ngudi ndi bd va ngudi ¢6 lién quan dbi voi ¢d phiéu ciia cong ty.
(Dinh kém Béo céo s6 02/2024/BCQT-SDN ngay 20/01/2025 vé tinh hinh quan tri Cong ty nam 2024)

Appendix 4: Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of the Company. (Attached

is Report No. 02/2024/BCQT-SDN dated January 20, 2025).

TT

Ngwdi thiyre hién
giao dich
Transaction
execufor

Quan hé
voi ngudi
ndi b
Relationshi
pwith
internal
persons

Ong Pao Dinh P&
(Thanh vién Hoi
dong Qudn tri
Members of
Board of

Directors)

S6 ¢b phiéu s& hivu dau
Ly
Number of shares owned
at the beginning of the
period

S6 ¢6 phiéu sé hitu
cudi ky
Number of shares
owned at the end of the
period

15 1¢
Percentage

S0 ¢o phieu
Number of
shares

162.768 5,36%

SH ¢b Ty lé

phiéu | Percentage
Number
of shares

Ly do ting,
giam (mua,
ban, chu_v'e"n
ddi,
thwdng...)
Ly do ting,
giam (mua,
ban, chuyén
ddi, thuong...)
Reasons for
increasing,
decreasing
(buying,
selling,
converting,
rewarding,
efc.)

149.168 | 491

3

Da ban/selling
13.600
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam

THE MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

The management of Dongnai Paint Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) hereby presents its fl
report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. '

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE i
MANAGEMENT \j;
Members of the Board of Directors during the year and on the date of this report include: ’\\C\}i
Y NI
Full name Position [
’ . (VAR
Mr Nguyen Pham Thuyen Chairperson xx AW
Mr Nguyen Duc Nhien Vice chairperson M/ i
Mr Dao Dinh De Member W
Mr Tran Trung Kien Member U
Ms Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh Member

Members of the Supervisory Committee during the year and on the date of this report include:

Full name Position |
Ms Dang Le Bich Phuong Head "
Ms Bui Thi Thuy Lien Member |
Ms Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong Member |

Members of management during the year and on the date of this report include:

Full name Position

Mr Nguyen Duc Nhien General Director

Mr Nguyen Pham Thuyen Vice General Director

Ms Huynh Nguyen Thanh Uyen Vice General Director

AUDITOR )

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 were ,
audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited, a member firm of RSM International. |

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE MANAGEMENT

The Company's management is responsible for preparing the financial statements of each period which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations and its cash flows. w
In preparing these financial statements, the management is required to:

=  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
= Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

=  State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any departures that need
to be disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

»  Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

= Design and implement the internal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
financial statements so as to mitigate error or fraud.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

THE MANAGEMENT’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

The management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and ensure that the financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam. The management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing these ..
financial statements. %;
i T

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGEMENT

"-...__*_'/

*
<§

In the management’s opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam.

1 behalf of management,

hyen"ﬁuc Nhien

General Director

Dong Nai Province, 20 February 2025
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THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX | CONSULTING

RSM Vietnam is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM s the trading name used by the members of the RSM network.
Each member of the RSM networl is an independent accounting and consulting firm which practices inits awn right
The RSM network is nat itsell a separate legal entity In any jurisdiction,

RSM

RSM Vietnam

3AFloor, L'Mak The Signature Building
147-147Bis Hai Ba Trung Street

Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

No.: 34/2025/KT-RSMHCM T +8428 387 5026
. contact_hcm@rsm.com.vn
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT www.rsm.global/vietham

To: Shareholders

Members of the Board of Directors
Members of the management
DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dongnai Paint Corporation (hereinafter referred to
as “the Company”) prepared on 20 February 2025 as set out from page 05 to page 36 which comprise the

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the income statement, cash-flow statement for -

the financial year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.
The management's Responsibility

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements and for such internal control
as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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RSM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Dongnai Paint Corporation as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014
and Circular 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by Ministry of Finance and relevant legislation as to the
preparation and presentation of financial statements.

pp GENERAL DIRECTOR

Nguyen Thi Xuan Kieu

Vice General Director Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate: Audit Practice Registration Certificate:
0172-2023-026-1 5547-2025-026-1

RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited
Ho Chi Minh City, 20 February 2025
As disclosed in Note 2.1 to the financial statements, the accompanying financial statements are not intended

to present the financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham
Form B 01 - DN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024

Expressed in VND
As at As at
ASSETS Code| Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 53,058,109,947 48,206,682,488
I Cash}and cash equivalents 110 4,588,484,559 4,209,000,623
1. Cash 111 4.1 4,588,484,559 4,209,000,623
Il. Current account receivables 130 27,869,367,682 21,733,398,811
1. Trade receivables 131 4.2 29,225,045,261 23,095,666,935
2. Advances to suppliers 132 45,232,960 -
3. Other current receivables 136 869,308,893 809,898,125
4. Provision for doubtful debts 137 | 4.3 (2,270,219,432) (2,172,166,249)
lll. Inventories 140 | 4.4 20,600,257,706 21,547,882,220
1. Inventories 141 20,665,775,006 21,624,063,016
2. Provision for decline in value of inventories 149 (65,517,300) (76,180,796)
IV. Other current assets 150 - 716,400,834
1.  Value added tax deductible 152 - 716,400,834
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 56,274,647,758 56,951,544,687
I.  Non-current account receivables 210 - 750,000,000
1. Other non-current receivables 216 - 750,000,000
Il. Fixed assets 220 1,165,944,996 1,471,356,953
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 4.5 1,165,944,996 1,471,356,953
Cost 222 31,743,783,133 32,362,232,888
Accumulated depreciation 223 (30,577,838,137)[ (30,890,875,935)

lll. Non-current financial investments 250 715,047,543 819,000,000
1. Investment in other entities 253 819,000,000 819,000,000
2. Provision for non-current investments 254 (103,952,457) -
IV. Other non-current assets 260 54,393,655,219 53,911,187,734
1. Non-current prepayments 261 4.6 54,170,970,034 53,688,502,549
2. Deferred income tax assets 262 222,685,185 222,685,185
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 109,332,757,705 | 105,158,227,175

(See the next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements




DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
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Vietnam
Form B 01 - DN ]
Tel |
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) HH
As at 31 December 2024 Na |
i
Expressed in VND IET |
As at As at v li
RESOURCES Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 —
C. LIABILITIES 300 42,397,189,957 40,851,963,039 §
I.  Current liabilities 310 42,197,189,957 40,164,272,489
1. Trade payables 311 | 4.7 17,374,326,002 18,845,554,769
2. Advances from customers 312 216,077,660 139,177,830
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the state budget| 313 | 4.8 824,947 540 610,395,870
4, Payables to employees 314 | 4.9 2,930,807,205 2,312,291,381
5. Accrued expenses 315 | 4.10 3,373,103,725 537,241,769
6. Current loans and obligations under finance
leases 320 | 4.11 13,474,768,889 12,046,505,869
7. Bonus and welfare fund 322 | 412 4,003,158,936 5,673,105,001
Il. Non-current liabilities 330 200,000,000 687,690,550
1. Other non-current payables 337 200,000,000 687,690,550
D. OWNER'S EQUITY 400 66,935,567,748 64,306,264,136
. Edquity 410 | 4.13 66,935,567,748 64,306,264,136
1. Owner's contributed capital 411 30,364,360,000 30,364,360,000
2. Investment and development fund 418 |4.13.6 21,270,364,407 6,587,580,230
3. Other reserves 420 |4.13.6 1,518,200,000 1,518,200,000
4, Retained earnings 421 13,782,643,341 25,836,123,906
Beginning accumulated retained earnings 421a 8,811,172,806 15,122,130,194
Retained earnings of the current year 421b 4 971,470,535 10,713,993,712
TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440 109,332,757,705 | 105,158,227,175

W

Nguyen Duc Nhien
General Director

Dong Nai Province, 20 February 2025

Huynh Thi Thanh Huong
Chief Accountant

/

Néuyen Bac Trung

Preparer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietham
Form B 02= l
INCOME STATEMENT h
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 |
Expressedfl'ﬂw E'
ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Ye |
1. Revenue 01 5.1 124,476,353,785 | 116,390,575,198
2. Deductions 02 52 4,828,382,245 5,855,137,592
3. Netrevenue 10 119,647,971,540 | 110,5635,437,606
4. Cost of sales 11 53 84,726,675,218 80,013,219,301
5. Gross profit 20 34,921,296,322 30,522,218,305
6. Finance income 21 54 33,394,909 10,245,572,302
7. Finance expense 22 55 4.470,930,992 4,792,906,519
Of which, interest expense 23 1,054,595,433 1,386,022,332 ‘I
8. Selling expense 25 5.6 8,460,346,058 6,732,178,033 \.
9. General and administrative expense 26 | 57 14,308,622,310 | 11,889,399,059 |
10. Operating profit/(loss) 30 7,714,791,871 17,353,306,996 ‘i
11. Other income 31 58 4,024,328,338 4,313,731,006 :
12. Other expense 32 582,679,796 917,251,469
13. Net other income/(loss) 40 3,441,648,542 3,396,479,537 |
14. Accounting profit/(loss) before tax 50 11,156,440,413 20,749,786,533 '
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51 5.10 2,306,492,106 4,421,139,201 |
16. Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 - (140,000,000) 'l
17. Net profit/(loss) after tax 60 8,849,948 307 16,468,647,332 ‘i
18. Basic earnings per share 70 |4.13.4 2,366 4 342 \.
19. Diluted earnings per share 71 | 4.13.4 2,366 4,342 ‘.
1.
—_ ; ;
guye Huynh Thi Thanh Huong Nguyen Bac Trung |
General Director Chief Accountant Preparer .
Dong Nai Province, 20 February 2025 |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 7 |
i
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam
Form B 03 - DN
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Expressed in VND
ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit /(loss) before taxes 01 11,156,440,413 | 20,749,786,533
2. Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation 02 59 692,121,772 1,022,192,994
Provisions 03 191,342,144 (5,320,365)
Foreign exchange gains/losses from revaluation of
foreign currency monetary items 04 - (12,571,500)
Gains/losses from investment 05 (38,516,675) (24,075,802)
Interest expense 06 5.5 1,054,595,433 1,386,022,332
3. Operating profit /(loss) before adjustments to
working capital 08 13,055,983,087 | 23,116,034,192
Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 09 (4,767,621,220) 1,731,819,806
Increase or decrease in inventories 10 958,288,010 3,300,403,106
Increase or decrease in accounts payable
(excluding interest expense and CIT payable) 11 2,115,680,571 (3,497,150,551)
Increase or decrease prepaid expenses 12 (482,467,485)| (8,539,099,183)
Increase or decrease in trading securities 13 - 2,450,000,000
Interest paid 14 (1,054,595,433)| (1,386,022,332)
Corporate income tax paid 15 4.8 (2,697,200,385)| (4,388,306,804)
Other cash inflows from operating activities 16 7,615,000 1,490,000
Other cash outflows from operating activities 17 (3,343,551,760)| (2,551,615,000)
Net cash from operating activities 20 3,892,130,385 | 10,237,553,234
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and
other long-term assets 21 (424,772,144) (133,438,000)
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and
other long-term assets 22 25,000,000 -
3. Interest and dividends received 27 13,516,675 24,075,802
Net cash from investing activities 30 (386,255,469) (109,362,198)
(See the next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam
Form B 03 - DN
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Expressed in VND

ITEMS Code| Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
lll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 6.1 37,047,284,257 | 36,207,347,768
2. Repayment of borrowings 34 6.2 | (35,619,021,237)| (42,071,764,871)
3. Dividends paid 36 [4.13.5| (4,554,654,000)] (5,313,763,000)

Net cash from financing activities 40 (3,126,390,980)| (11,178,180,103)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH

(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 379,483,936 | (1,049,989,067)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60 4,209,000,623 5,258,989,690

Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 61 - -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR (70 = 50 + 60 + 61) 70 4.1 4,588,484,559 4,209,000,623

General Director

Dong Nai Province, 20 February 2025

Chief Accountant

Nguyen Bac
Preparer

Trung

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

1.1.

1:2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

2.41.

2.2,

Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Structure of ownership

Dongnai Paint Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the Company") — former name is Dongnai Paint
Factory — a state-owned enterprise under Dong Nai Department of Industry. On 13 December 1999,
the Company was converted into a joint stock company called Dong Nai Paint Corporation in
accordance with Business Registration Certificate No. 3600451024 dated 01 March 2000 granted by

Dong Nai Province's Department of Planning and Investment and other amended certificates
thereafter with the latest one dated 23 October 2023.

The charter capital as stipulated in the Business Registration Certificate is VND 30,364,360,000.

The Company’s registered head office is Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien
Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was 149 (31 December 2023: 167).
Business field

Manufacturing.

Operating industry and principal activities

The Company is principally engaged in production and trading of paint products, production of putty
(wall putty).

Normal operating cycle

The Company’s normal operating cycle is carried out for a period of 12 months.

Operating activities in the financial year impacting the financial statements

According to the Resolution No. 32/2024/NQ-HDQT dated 12 June 2024 and the Resolution No.
36/2024/NQ-HPQT dated 30 August 2024, the Board of Directors approved the termination of
operations at the Bac Ninh branch due to the expiration of the investment project's duration and the

decision not to extend the investment, the date of termination is from 01 September 2024. Currently,
the Company is in the process of completing the procedures to dissolve the branch.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting standards, accounting system

The accompanying financial statements, expressed in Vietnamese Dong (“VND”), are prepared under
the historical cost convention, and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese

Corporate Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

Forms of accounting records

The form of accounting records applied in the Company is the General Journal.

10
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

2.3.

2.4.

3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

3.4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial year
The Company’s financial year is from 01 January to 31 December.
Reporting and functional currency
The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.
SI(?NIFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currencies

= The exchange rate applied in accounting is the actual transaction exchange rate at the time of

transaction;
= The exchange rate applicable to asset re-evaluation is the foreign currency-buying rate;
=  The exchange rate applicable to liability re-evaluation is the foreign currency-selling rate;

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded, on initial recognition, in the reporting currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the reporting currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. The exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. At the end of the
reporting year, monetary items excluding advances to suppliers, prepaid expenses, and unearned
revenues, which are denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the closing rate and resultant
exchange differences resulting from the reporting after offset are recognised in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that impact the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities, contingent assets as at 31
December 2024 and liabilities reported in the notes as well as revenues and expenses for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of all relevant information available at the date when the financial statements are prepared,
this does not prevent actual figures differing from estimates.

Cash
Cash comprise cash in hand and cash at bank as at the end of reporting year.
Account receivables

Recognition method

Account receivables are stated at the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
less provisions for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts

As of the date of the financial statements, provisions for doubtful debts are recognised for past-due
accounts receivable and for accounts receivable where circumstances indicate that they might be
uncollectible or for uncollectible debts due to liquidation, bankruptcy, or similar difficulties.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of provision for doubtful debts
is recorded as a general and administrative expense in the income statement.

11
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietham

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3.5. Inventories
Inventory measurement

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

narmal levels of activity.
The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, non-reimbursable taxes a Q
and transport, handling, and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of inventorie

discounts and sales rebates on substandard and obsolete goods purchased are deducted from the
costs of purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Method of accounting for inventories

Inventories are measured using the weighted average method and are recorded under the perpetual
inventory method.

Provisions for decline in value of inventories

As of the date of the financial statements, provisions are recognised for obsolete, slow-moving,
defective inventory, and for inventory stated at cost higher than net realisable value.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of the provisions for a decline
in value of inventories is included in cost of sales in the income statement.

Inventories are written down to net realizable value item by item. For services being rendered,
provision is made in respect of each service for which a separate selling price is charged.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

3.6. Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Tangible fixed asset recognition

Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost. The cost of purchased tangible fixed assets
comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their present
location and working condition for their intended use. Accessories added to fixed assets when
purchased are recognised separately at their fair values and deducted from the historical cost of the
respective tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

The costs of fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

12
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Tangible fixed assets (Continued)

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

= Buildings, structures 05 — 25 years
= Machinery and equipment 03 - 10 years
= Motor vehicles 05— 15 years
= Management equipment 03 — 05 years
Leases

Lease classification

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Prepayment

Prepayment is classified as non-current based on their original term and mainly cost related to prepaid
infrastructure rentals.

Infrastructure rental is recorded as prepaid expenses which are amortised over the rental period.
Liabilities

Liabilities are classified into trade payables and other payables based on the following rules: Trade
payables represent those arising from purchase and sale related transactions of goods, services or

assets and the seller is independent of the buyer; the remaining payables are classified as other
payables.

Liabilities are also classified according to the maturity date, the remaining term from the date of the
financial statements, original currency, and each creditor.

Liabilities are recognised at no less than the payment obligation.

Borrowing costs

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets,
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets until the assets are put into use or sale.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of borrowings is deducted from the cost of the
respective assets.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the income statement when incurred.

13
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

3.411.

3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON;fINUED)

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses represent expenses that will be paid in the future for goods or services received
but not yet paid due to lack of invoices or accounting documents. These expenses are recognised as
operating expenses of the reporting year.

Owners’ equity

The owners’ contributed equity

The owners' contributed equity is recognised when contributed.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the date of declaring dividends.

Reserves

Reserves are created at certain percentages of profit after tax as prescribed in the Company’s charter

Retained earnings

Net profit after income tax can be distributed to shareholders after the distribution is approved the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and reserves are created in accordance with the Company's
Charter and legal regulations in Vietnam.

Revenue

Revenue from selling goods

Revenue from selling goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
In most cases, revenue is recognised when transferring the risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyer.

Revenue involving the rendering of services

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of this
transaction can be estimated reliably. When a transaction involving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, each period’s revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion at the end of the reporting period.

Deductions
Deductions include trade discounts and sale returns.

Deductions arising in the reporting year from consumption of products, goods and services are
recognised as decreases in revenue in that year; Deductions arising after the end of the reporting year
but prior to issuing the financial statements for the reporting year are recognised as decreases in
revenue of the reporting year; Deductions arising after the end of the reporting year and after issuing
the financial statements for the reporting year are recognised as decreases in revenue of the next

year.
Cost of sales

Cost of sales and services provided represents total costs of finished products, goods, services which
are sold in the year in accordance with the matching principle. Abnormal amounts of production costs
of inventories are recognised immediately in cost of sales.

14
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON-TINUED)

Finance expense

Finance expenses represent all expenses incurred in the reporting year which mainly include payment
discount, borrowing costs, provision for impairment of investment in other entities, and losses from

exchange rates.
Selling expense and general and administrative expense

Selling expenses represent expenses incurred during the process of selling products, goods, and
rendering services, which include expenses relating to raw materials, packaging; offering, introducing
products, advertising products; promotion; sales commissions; product warranty; transportation costs,
loading and unloading costs, sundry expenses (entertainment, etc.).

General and administrative expenses represent common expenses, which include payroll costs for
office employees’ (salaries, wages, allowances, etc.); social insurance, health insurance, trade union
fees and unemployment insurance; stationery expenses, material expenses, depreciation expenses
of fixed assets used for administration activities; land rental, license tax; utility services (electricity
expenses, water expenses, phone, fax, warranty expenses, etc.); sundry expenses (entertainment,
customer conference, etc.).

Taxation
Corporate income tax
Current corporate income tax expense

Current corporate tax expense is determined on the basis of taxable income and the rate of corporate
income tax (CIT) of the current year at 20%.

Deferred corporate income tax expense

Deferred corporate tax expense is determined on the basis of the deductible temporary differences,
taxable temporary differences and the estimated CIT rate that will be applied for the years that assets
and liabilities will be recovered. The tax rates used will be the tax rates (and tax laws) that are in effect

at the financial year end.
Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, unless:

» The deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax
loss);

= Al taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and
associates, and interests in joint ventures when the parent, investor or venturer is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be

utilised, unless:

= The deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss);

»  The deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures are only recognised when it
is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.18. Taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction shall be reverted to
the extent it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the
year except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the
same or a different year, directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are only offset if, and only if, the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Value added tax

The goods sold and services rendered by the Company are subject to value added tax 10%.

Other taxes
Other taxes are applicable in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietham.

The tax reports of the Company will be inspected by the Tax Department. Application of the laws and
regulations on tax to different transactions can be interpreted by many ways; therefore, the tax
amounts presented in the financial statements can be amended in accordance with the Tax
Department’s final assessment for the Company.

3.19. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Company and held as
treasury shares.

3.20. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year and total ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion,
excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Company and held as treasury shares.

3.21. Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in producing or
providing related products or services (business segment), or in producing or providing products or
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham

3.22.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Related parties

Related parties are individuals or entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly through onee
intermediaries, to control the Company or are controlled by, or are subject to common control Wi

Company. Associates, individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power Gfithe

Company that gives them sngnlﬂcant influence over the Company, key management pérs

such individuals are also considered to be related parties.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE STATEMENT OF FIN;C\NCIAL

POSITION
Cash
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Cash in hand 354,793,468 604,525,032
Cash at banks 4.233,691,091 3,604,475,591
Total 4,588,484,559 4,209,000,623
Current trade receivables
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

4,566,700,839
2,258,555,620
22,399,788,802

2,906,680,081
2,384,051,111
17,804,935,743

PPG Viet Nam Company Limited
Gia Gia Phat Trading and Service Company Limited
Other customers (*)

Total 29,225,045,261 23,095,666,935

(*) As at 31 December 2024, any component of current trade receivables from other customers was
less than 10% total current trade receivables.

Current trade receivables of at least VND 15 billion have been used as collateral, pledge, or security
for loans — Refer to Note 4.11.

Doubtful debts

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost amount Cost amount
Overdue trade receivables 2,289,930,132 19,710,700 2,192,166,249 20,000,000

The management assessed the ability to recover the overdue receivables as low because receivables
has been outstanding for many years.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON;I;INUED)

4.6. Non - current prepayments

Representing land rental and infrastructure usage costs at Ho Nai Industrial Park, Ho Nai 3 Commune,
Trang Bom District, Dong Nai Province with a lease term from 06 June 2022 to 31 May 2065.

4.7, Current trade payables

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Payable Payable
Amount amount Amount amount
Trade payables to
related parties - - 65,691,038 65,691,038
Trade payables:
Da Trang
Transport and
Trading
Production
Company Limited 1,763,047,188 1,763,047,188 2,369,832,800 2,369,832,800

Other suppliers (*) 15,611,278,814 15,611,278,814 16,410,030,931 16,410,030,931

Total 17,374,326,002 17,374,326,002 18,845,554,769 18,845,554,769

(*) As at 31 December 2024, any component of current trade payables to other suppliers was less than
10% of the total current trade payables.

(See the next page)

21




(44

(abed 1xau syj e8g)

"¥20z Jaquiade( L¢ Je se seafojdwse o) sjgehed zogz Jesh ul Auejes yuow-4g | pue Alejes yiuow-,z | ay) Bunussaiday

saafojdwa 0] se|qeled 6t

£02'6€6'L2 ZTL'761'S8S'y G/8'60%'LLY L LE0'99.°605°Z L /€9'00L'L€S Xe)} pappe anjea jndinQ
pred pajonpag 8|qefed

aNA anNA anNA

¥20Z "uer Lo je sy Jeak uj JuswaAo $Z0Z "2oQ 1€ Je sy

SMO||0} SE pajielap SI Xe] pappe anjeA indino ‘'yaiym 1o (,)

0.8°G6£°01L9 659°588°59Z'9 6ZE°LE1'08Y'S ovS V6 vZs lejol
- 000'000'% 000°000't - sexe} Jayl0
775'808'chL 28z',08'ces /6/'S06'v2S 650°206'GL XE} SWodu| [euosiad
€zl '8r9'sey G8£'00Z'/65'C 001 '26¥'90'C y¥8'686° 2L Xe} awoou| syesodio)
- 0.2'€89'05S 0.2'€89'95S = spoob papodwi uo xe; pappe anjep
€02'656'.2 Z2/'¥61'68G'y 951'95¢£'880'S 1£9°00L°LES (+) e} peppe enjeA Jndino
a|gefed pied a|qefed a|qefed

anNA anNA aNA

¥202Z "uer Lo je sy Jeak ui JuswiaAol ¥20Z "23Q LS e sy

126pngq ajels ayj o3 ajqehed sjunowe pue xej| ¥

(Q3INNILNOD) SLINAWILVYLS TVIONVNI4 SHL OL SILON

WeujsiA "@ouIn0ld IBN Buog "A1Q eoH usig "pJep) yuig Uy ' ‘ON PEOY Ed [eisnpu] | EOH usig :SSaIppy
NOILVHOdH0D LNIVd IVNDONOQd

MWW mmmmmmmwmmmmmmMmWm W W W Y W W o OE oW W N N W W



(14

‘G’ @JON 01 Jaley — AjpAnoadsal ‘g ANA PUB /##'8/8'€86 ' AN/ 218 $20¢ Joquade( |LE 1B SE anjeA |BNpISa) pue ]SO0 Ylm S}esse paxl{ =
‘' 910N 01 Jaley — Uoljjig G ANA 10 [2A2] Buluiejuiews wnuiuiw e yim AIoJuSAUl JO SNBA |BJO] =
‘Z'{ 910N 0} Jajey — Uol||Ig S gNA 40 SnjeA WNWIUIL B YA 21NN} SUY3 Ul PSLLIOL 24 ||IM JO/pUB usaq aABy 1ey) Sa|geslaoal apel) 0] siybly =

‘s|eJaje|joo Buimoljol ay} Aq painaas ‘ssauisng pue uoponpoud sy saies pue [ejded Bulsiom
s >_._mano ay) juswa|ddns o1 sI ueoj ay} o asodind ay} ‘Jesh Jad 9,z'g 01 %G/ wol 1diedal Jgap 8y} uo Ueo| Ydes Ioj slel jsalsjul syl pue uoljiiq 0§ aNA
SI JILWI| P80 8yl 'syjuow Z| Buipasoxa Jou Wia) 8y} Ylim apel] pue Aujsnpuj Joj jueg [BloJswio) 32018 JUlor WeulsIA 18 dNA Ul Sueo| Juaund Bunuesaidey

698'G05°'9¥0'Z ) 698'605'9¥0'C 1 1£2'120'619'6e 162'¥8T'1¥0'1E 688'89/'v.¥'ClL 688'89/'V.i¥'ECL sueo| yueg
unouwe a|qefed Junowy asealoa( asealou| junowe sjqefed unowy
aNA aNA aNA
¥20Z "uer Lo je sy Jeak ayj ul syusWLAOy ¥20Z "99Q L€ je sy

saljijiqel| asea| a3ukuUl} pue SUBO| JUaLINY  “LL'Y

69L°1¥T LSS gzl'eol'cle'e . |elol
£85'8e8°LLL 850°c0¥'901 sosuadxa Jayjo paniooy
- 056'6%S 0€ unoosip juswied paniooy
98l'coc'cey LLL'IEV'El L Ad08)e peniooy
000'0¥0'2 000'€L0'68L'C ssuadxa weiboud jeuonowolid paniooy
aNA anNA

¥20g "uer Lo ¥20¢ 92Q LE

je sy 1B sy

sasuadxa paniade jualng  ‘oL'fy

(Q3INNILNOD) SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 IHL OL SILON

WBUlaIA @oulnold IeN Buoq ‘AiD eoH ualg ‘piep yuig uy '/ "ON PeOoY ied |euisnpu] | eoH usig Ssalppy
NOILVHOdd0D LNIVd IVNONOJ

WHmmmmmQmTmTmTmTQmmmmQmmmmmmmmmmWwmmmmmmPmmmw E



TR T T TR T T T ™

TV VRV TR TV TR

W &) A W

Al LA

Al

il

i w W omwmw W W

N

1\

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.12. Bonus and welfare fund

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
"As at 01 January 5,673,105,001 4,938,873,481
Distribution in year 1,665,990,695 3,284,356,520
Other increase 7,615,000 1,490,000
Using in year (3,343,551,760) (2,551,615,000)
As at 31 December 4,003,158,936 5,673,105,001
(See the next page)
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON;I;INUED)

4.13.2. Details of owners’ equity

4.13.3.

4.13.4.

Sonadezi Corporation
Capital contributed by others

As at
31 Dec. 2024
VND

As at
01 Jan. 2024
VND

9,110,880,000
21,253,480,000

9,110,880,000
21,253,480,000

Total 30,364,360,000 30,364,360,000
Shares
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Number of ordinary shares registered for issue 3,036,436 3,036,436
Number of ordinary shares sold to public 3,036,436 3,036,436
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 3,036,436 3,036,436
Par value per outstanding share: VND 10,000 per share.
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Profit after tax attributable to ordinary share holders
Distribution to Bonus and welfare fund (*)

8,849,948,307
(1,665,990,695)

16,468,647,332
(3,284,356,520)

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted

earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year (**)

7,183,957,612

3,036,436

13,184,290,812

3,036,436

Basic and diluted earnings per share

2,366

4,342

(*) Bonus and welfare fund deducted when calculating basic and diluted earnings per share in year

2024 which is provisionally calculated.

(**) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year was calculated as

follows:

Ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of year

Impact of 1,518,218 ordinary shares issued on 27 October
2023 from development investment fund is adjusted to
increase according to the regulation of Vietnamese
Accounting Standard No. 30

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period

Year 2024 Year 2023
3,036,436 1,518,218
- 1,618,218
3,036,436 3,036,436
26
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION |
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, !

Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.13.5. Dividends

Year 2024 Year 2023 |

VND VND ,;

Opening balance - - »
Dividends payable 4,554,654,000 5,313,763,000 |

Dividends paid of ordinary shares (*) (4,554,654,000)

(5,313,763,0%
e
Z

Ending balance =

(*) Of which, dividends paid to related parties —
Refer to Note 8 (1,630,584,000)

4.12.6. Corporate funds

Development
investment fund
VND VND

Other funds

6,587,580,230 1,518,200,000
14,682,784,177 -

As at 01 Jan. 2024
Distributed in year

21,270,364,407 1,518,200,000

As at 31 Dec. 2024
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414, Off statement of financial position items

As at As at |
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 ]
VND VND f
Leased assets: Total minimum amount of irrevocable (
operating leases classified by term: i
|
Within one year 283,953,928 283,953,928 ‘
Later than one year but within five years 686,252,061 686,252,061 I
Later than five years 2,470,507,420 2,745,008,244 |

Total 3,440,713,409 3,715,214,233

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND
Doubtful debts written off: |
Written off according to Board of Directors Resolution I

dated 23 July 2013 333,886,504 333,886,504

Written off according to Board of Directors Resolution

dated 31 July 2015

1,111,934,750

1,111,934,750
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON-'i;INUED)
5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE INCOME STATEMENT
5.1. Revenue from selling goods and rendering services
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Sale of goods 96,432,342,903 91,728,002,636
Sale of paint processing 28,044,010,882 24.662,572,562
Total 124,476,353,785 116,390,575,198
Of which, the revenue from selling goods and
rendering services to related parties — Refer to Note
8 12,121,850 42,250,975
5.2 Deductions
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Trade discounts 4.287,951,045 4,639,430,908
Sales returns 540,431,200 1,215,706,684
Total 4,828,382,245 5,855,137,592
5.3. Cost of sales
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cost of merchandise sold 64,157,649,313 61,089,475,621
Cost of paint processing 20,569,025,905 18,923,743,680
Total 84,726,675,218 80,013,219,301
5.4. Finance income
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Gains from realized exchange differences 19,878,234 12,571,500
Deposit interest 13,516,675 24,075,802
Income from liquidation and sale of financial
investments - 10,208,925,000
Total 33,394,909 10,245,572,302

The finance income this year has significantly decreased compared to the previous year because the
Company sold all its shares in Sonadezi Chau Duc Joint Stock Company last year and recorded a

profit of VND 10.2 billion.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON-'i'INUED)

Finance expense

Payment discounts

Interest expense

Provision for decline in value of investment
impairment loss

Losses from exchange differences

Total

Selling expense

Material and packaging expense
Depreciation expense

Trade promotion expenses
Rendered services expenses
Sundry expenses in cash

Total

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
3,282,241,695 3,387,377,360

1,054,595,433

1,386,022,332

103,952,457 =
30,141,407 19,506,827
4,470,930,992 4,792,906,519
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

1,163,328,667
70,400,796
4,234,829,938
516,963,719
2,484,822,938

1,129,422,181
52,144,074
2,411,264,611
516,894,403
2,622,452,764

8,460,346,058

6,732,178,033

The selling expenses this year have increased by approximately 26% compared to previous year,
mainly due to the Company's intensified trade promotion activities, including promotions and

advertising.

General and administrative expense

Employee expenses

Material expenses

Office stationery expenses
Depreciation expense

Taxes, fees and charge
Infrastructure usage expenses
Provision for doubtful debts
Rendered services expenses
Sundry expenses in cash

Total

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

6,257,651,563
557,623,616
112,243,172
278,573,878
98,860,439
3,220,514,333
98,053,183
571,867,115
3,113,235,011

6,086,652,891
544,173,243
99,451,661
298,715,544
129,246,573
700,000,000
23,984,816
498,063,789
3,509,110,542

14,308,622,310

11,889,399,059

The general and administrative expenses this year have increased by more than 20% compared to
previous year, mainly due to the Company's additional recognition of infrastructure usage costs from

previous years.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON-'-I;INUED)

Other income

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

Income from warehouse leasing and management 3,169,204,884

3,150,530,048
972,882,885
190,318,073

4,313,731,006

Income from surplus materials and goods 616,252,780

Other income 238,870,674

Total 4,024,328,338
Production and business costs by element

Year 2024

VND

Year 2023
VND

54,947,078,066
27,523,405,204
692,121,772
98,053,183
13,529,006,807
8,939,032,721

Material expenses

Employee expense
Depreciation expense
Provision for doubtful debts
Rendered services expenses
Sundry expenses in cash

51,607,332,283
25,271,492,405
1,022,192,994
23,984,816
10,152,436,678
6,947,404,698

Total 105,728,697,753

95,024,843,874

Current corporate income tax expense

CIT expense calculated on the taxable income of the current year is determined as follows:

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

11,156,440,413
789,446,044

Accounting profit before tax for the yéar
Add: Adjustments according to CIT law
Less: Adjustments according to CIT law (413,425,926)

20,749,786,533
1,769,335,396
(413,425,926)

Taxable income from business activities 11,532,460,531
Current CIT rate 20%

22,105,696,003
20%

Current CIT expense from business activities 2,306,492,106

4,421,139,201

Current CIT expense for the year 2,306,492,106

4,421,139,201

The adjustments for the increases (decreases) in the taxable income are mainly non — tax — deductible

items as regulated by CIT law, such as:

= Expenses without invoices and vouchers;
= Accrual expenses without invoice;
= Remuneration of non-operational Board of Directors.
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietnam
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
6.1. Cash receipts from loans in the year
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash receipts from loans under normal contracts 37,047,284,257 36,207,347,768
6.2. Cash repayments of principal amounts borrowed
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash repayment of principal amounts under normal
contracts (35,619,021,237) (42,071,764,871)

(See the next page)
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Vietham

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. RELATED PARTIES
No. List of related parties

Sonadezi Corporation

Sonadezi Enviroment Joint Stock Company
Sonadezi Services Joint Stock Company
Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company

0N =

5.. Thien Nhat Thien Company Limited

Phuong Dong Company Limited

o

Committee

Relationship

Significant influence shareholder
Fellow company
Fellow company
Fellow company
The company has the same key
management personnel

The company has the same key
management personnel

Board of Directors, management, and Supervisory Key management personnel

During the reporting year, the Company has had related party transactions as follows:

Rendering services — Refer to Note 5.1:

Phuong Dong Company Limited

Purchasing and receiving services:

Sonadezi Corporation

Dong Nai Water Joint Stock Company
Sonadezi Enviroment Joint Stock Company
Sonadezi Services Joint Stock Company
Thien Nhat Thien Company Limited

Total

Dividends paid:

Sonadezi Corporation

Mr Nguyen Pham Thuyen
Mr Nguyen Duc Nhien

Mr Dao Dinh De

Ms Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh

Total — Refer to Note 4.13.5

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
12,121,850 42 250,975
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
240,466,263 238,616,850
108,420,000 104,761,000
46,000,000 48,280,000
29,147 479 26,776,035
- 2,478,314,325
424,033,742 2,896,748,210
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

1,366,632,000

1,594,404,000

12,000,000 14,000,000
19,800,000 23,100,000
227,052,000 284,844,000
5,100,000 5,950,000
1,630,584,000 1,922,298,000
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietham

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
Remunerations of the Board of Directors, the management, and the Supervisory Committee are as
follows:
Year 2024 Year 2023

Name Position VND VND

Mr Nguyen Pham Thuyen Chairperson cum Vice 590,245,000 541,345,000
General Director

Mr Nguyen Duc Nhien Vice chairperson cum 634,547,000 580,679,000
General Director

Mr Dao Dinh De Member of the Board of 113,992,000 112,592,000
Directors

Mr Tran Trung Kien Member of the Board of 113,992,000 112,592,000
Directors

Ms Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh Member of the Board of 113,992,000 101,692,000
Directors

Ms Huynh Nguyen Thanh 433,389,000 382,256,000

Uyen Vice General Director

Ms Dang Le Bich Phuong Head of Supervisory 113,992,000 112,592,000
Committee

Ms Bui Thi Thuy Lien Member of Supervisory 64,996,000 64,396,000
Committee

Ms Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong Member of Supervisory 64,996,000 64,396,000
Committee

Total 2,244,141,000 2,072,540,000

9. COMMITMENT UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Company rents land and factories under operating leases. The leases are for an average period
of 48 years, with fixed rentals over the same year.

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Payments under operating leases recognised as an
expense in the year 238,616,850 238,616,850

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases that fall due as follows:

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND

Within one year 283,953,928 283,953,928
Later than one year but within five years 686,252,061 686,252,061
Later than five years 2,470,507,420 2,745,008,244
Total 3,440,713,409 3,715,214,233
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Vietnam

10.

1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The following comparative figures have been restated:

Financial statement notes (excerpted):

As at As at
01 Jan. 2024 31 Dec. 2023
VND VND
(As previously
(Reclassified) reported)

Inventories:
Raw materials 7,019,906,889 7,019,906,889
Tools and supplies 778,608,147 778,608,147
Semi-finished goods 625,902,809 -
Finished goods 13,197,535,549 13,823,438,358
Merchandise 2,109,622 2,109,622

Total

21,624,063,016

21,624,063,016

The restatement for notes of inventory items is to align with the presentation of the financial statements
for the current financial period. The management believes that the restatement will provide useful
information to the users of the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING YEAR

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2024 that has significantly affected,
or may significantly affect the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's
state of affairs in future financial years.

&

———_/

Huynh Thi Thanh Huong Nguyen Bac Trung
Chief Accountant Preparer

General Director

Dong Nai Province, 20 February 2025
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